
 

 

City of Black Hawk 

City Council 

211 Church Street 

October 22, 2014 

3:00 p.m. 

 
RINGING OF THE BELL: 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 

2. ROLL CALL & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

3. AGENDA CHANGES: 

 

4. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  (Council disclosures are on file w/City Clerk & Sec. Of State) 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Please limit comments to 5 minutes 

 (Notify the City Clerk if you wish to address Council on items not on the agenda) 

  

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  October 8, 2014 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. 101 Hillside Street – Appeal on a decision by the Community Planning & Development Administrator 

B. 171 Marchant Street – Appeal on a decision by the Community Planning & Development Administrator 

C. CB21 – An Ordinance Amending Section 2-132 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code Concerning the 

Imposition of Court Costs to Cover the Costs of Insuring Community Service 

D. CB22 – An Ordinance Approving the FTA Section 5311 Grant Agreement Between the Colorado 

Department of Transportation, Division of Transit and Rail and the City of Black Hawk 

8. ACTION ITEMS: 

E. Resolution 81, A Resolution Approving the License Agreement Between the City of Black Hawk and 

Locksmith, Inc. as Owner of the Property Located at 120 Main Street (continued from October 8, 2014 

meeting) 

F. Resolution 82, A Resolution Approving the license Agreement Between the City of Black Hawk and Edward 

E. Smith, Shirley J. Smith, Sherell J. Smith, Gregory Street LLC, and Smithloch LLC, as Owners of the 

Properties Located at 125, 131, 135, and141 Gregory Street (recommend continuation to November 12, 2014 

meeting) 

G. Resolution 87, A Resolution Approving Bicycle Permit Application Fee 

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORTS: Request for Authorization to Dispose of Equipment 

 

10. CITY ATTORNEY: 

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the City of Black Hawk is to progressively provide cost effective programs and services of the highest 

quality to the community 



1

City of Black Hawk
City Council Minutes

October 8, 2014

Deputy City Clerk, Michele Martin, rang the bell.

1. CALL TO ORDER: The regular meeting of the City Council was called to order at 3:00
p.m. by Mayor Spellman on Wednesday, October 8, 2014.

2. ROLL CALL: Present were: Mayor Spellman, Aldermen Armbright, Bennett,
Johnson, Midcap, Moates, and Torres.

Staff present: City Attorney Hoffmann, City Manager Lewis, Police Chief Cole,
City Clerk/Administrative Services Director Greiner, Senior
Engineer Ford, Finance Director Hillis, Public Works Director
Isbester, Community Planning and Development Administrator
Linker, Deputy City Clerk Martin, and Fire Chief Taylor.

PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Spellman led the meeting in the recitation of the Pledge of

Allegiance.

3. AGENDA CHANGES: City Clerk Greiner explained there were three (3) changes to the
agenda. Item 7(A) has been recommended to be tabled indefinitely,
and items 8(G) and (H) have been recommended to be continued to
October 22, 2014.

4. CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST: City Attorney Hoffmann asked Council to declare any Conflicts of

Interest on any issue appearing on the agenda this afternoon other
than those previous disclosures and conflicts that have already
been disclosed and are on file with the City Clerk and Secretary of
State. There were no conflicts noted from City Council.

City Attorney Hoffmann asked the audience if there were any
objections to any member of Council voting on any issue on the
agenda this afternoon. The audience had no objections.

5. (a) INTRODUCTION
OF NEW EMPLOYEE: Michele Martin, Deputy City Clerk.



2

(b) PUBLIC
COMMENTS: City Clerk Greiner explained no one had signed up for public

comments.

6. APPROVAL OF
MINUTES September 24, 2014 – Alderman Armbright noted a change to page

5 of the public hearing section of 7(D). Hillside Street should be
changed to High Street.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Armbright to approve the Minutes of the meeting with the one
correction noted.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
A. Resolution 73, A
Resolution Conditionally
Approving a Certificate
of Appropriateness and
Site Development Plan
for the Proposed Porte
Cochere for the Canyon
Casino (Recommend
Table Indefinitely) Mayor Spellman read the title and noted the recommendation to

table the public hearing indefinitely.

City Attorney Hoffmann noted for the record that once the
application was complete, staff would repost the public hearing.

MOTION TO
TABLE
INDEFINITELY Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Bennett to table this agenda item indefinitely.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

B. CB18, An Ordinance
Approving the 2015
Operating Plan and
Budget for the Black
Hawk Business
Improvement District Mayor Spellman read the title.



3

City Attorney Hoffmann explained Council’s requirement, under
Statute creating the Business Improvement District, to approve an
Operating Plan and budget for the next year.

PUBLIC HEARING: Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB18, An
Ordinance approving the 2015 Operating Plan and Budget for the
Black Hawk Business Improvement District open and invited
anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” or “against” the
proposed ordinance to come forward.

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the
Public Hearing closed.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by

Alderman Torres to approve Ordinance 2014-18, An Ordinance
approving the 2015 Operating Plan and Budget for the Black Hawk
Business Improvement District.

MOTION PASSED Alderman Torres noted on page 14, Exhibit 1 of the Operating Plan
and Budget, Andrew Gentile was referenced under Fitzgerald’s
and it should be the Saratoga. The motion PASSED unanimously.

C. CB19, A Bill for an
Ordinance Rezoning
Certain Property
Located Along Bobtail
Street and More
Particularly Described
as Lots 1, 2, and 3,
Block 34, City of Black
Hawk, Colorado to the
HARD – History
Appreciation Recreation
Destination District Mayor Spellman read the title.

Vince Harris, Baseline Consulting, explained the rezoning of City-
owned property to the HARD zoning district. Any rezoning
requires four (4) findings, which were included in the staff report.

PUBLIC HEARING: Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB19, A Bill for an
Ordinance rezoning certain property located along Bobtail Street
and more particularly described as Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block 34, City
of Black Hawk, Colorado to the HARD district open and invited
anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” or “against” the
appeal to come forward.



4

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the
Public Hearing closed.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Moates to approve Ordinance 2014-19 with staff’s findings, An
Ordinance rezoning certain property located along Bobtail Street
and more particularly described as Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block 34, City
of Black Hawk, Colorado to the HARD – History Appreciation
Recreation Destination District.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

D. CB20, A Bill for an
Ordinance Rezoning
Certain Property
Located Along Hillside
Street and More Particularly
Described as Blocks 1, 2,
and 3, City of Black Hawk,
Colorado to the ECP –
Environmental Character
Preservation District
E. Resolution 79, A
Resolution Approving
the Minor Subdivision
for the City-Owned
Property Located Along
Hillside Street and More
Particularly Described
as Blocks 1, 2, and 3,
City of Black Hawk,
Colorado

Mayor Spellman combined agenda items 7(D) and 7(E) and read
the titles.

Vince Harris, Baseline Consulting, explained that the property in
question is platted into lots that were originally designed for single
family uses (approximately 40'x100') but the terrain and access do not
allow for the successful development of this use. The City, as owner,
has made application to rezone these properties into the
Environmental Character Preservation (ECP) District. The City also
proposes to remove the internal lot lines of the blocks. The proposed
Ordinance and Resolution support these actions. The findings for
each of these applications are found in the packet.



5

PUBLIC HEARING: Mayor Spellman declared a Public Hearing on CB20, A Bill for an
Ordinance rezoning certain property located along Hillside Street
and more particularly described as Blocks 1, 2, and 3, City of
Black Hawk, Colorado to the ECP – Environmental Character
Preservation District and Resolution 79, A Resolution 79
approving the minor subdivision for the City-owned property
located along Hillside Street and more particularly described as
Blocks 1, 2, and 3, City of Black Hawk, Colorado open and invited
anyone wanting to address the Board either “for” or “against” the
appeal to come forward.

No one came forward to speak and Mayor Spellman declared the
Public Hearing closed.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Moates MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Armbright to approve Ordinance 2014-20 with staff’s findings, A
Bill for an Ordinance rezoning certain property located along
Hillside Street and more particularly described as Blocks 1, 2, and
3, City of Black Hawk, Colorado to the ECP – Environmental
Character Preservation District.

Alderman Torres MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman
Johnson to approve Resolution 79 with staff’s findings, A
Resolution approving the minor subdivision for the City-owned
property located along Hillside Street and more particularly
described as Blocks 1, 2, and 3, City of Black Hawk, Colorado.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motions PASSED unanimously.

8. ACTION ITEMS:
F. Resolution 80, A
Resolution Conditionally
Approving a Certificate
of Appropriateness
for a Standard Sign Plan
for the Property Located
at 231 Gregory Street Mayor Spellman read the title.

Vince Harris, Baseline Consulting, explained the two components
of this agenda item. The applicant, 5B1S, LLC doing business as
1859, has submitted an application for a Certificate of
Appropriateness for a Standard Sign Plan and staff has found the
plan to be in compliance with the City’s Sign Code. Staff has
identified that the two proposed blade signs project into the City
owned right-of-way along Gregory Street and a License



6

Agreement is the second component of this Resolution to
adequately describe the encroachment.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by

Alderman Bennett to approve Resolution 80, A Resolution
conditionally approving a Certificate of Appropriateness for a
Standard Sign Plan for the property located at 231 Gregory Street.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

G. Resolution 81, A
Resolution Approving
the License Agreement
Between the City of Black
Hawk and Lochsmith,
Inc. as Owner of the
Property Located at 120
Main Street

H. Resolution 82, A
Resolution Approving
the License Agreement
Between the City of
Black Hawk and Edward
E. Smith, Shirley J. Smith,
Sherell J. Smith, Gregory
Street LLC, and Smithloch
LLC, as owners of the
properties located at 125,
131, 135, and 141 Gregory Streets

Mayor Spellman read the combined agenda items 8(G) and 8(H)
and noted the recommendation to continue these items until the
October 22, 2014 meeting.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Johnson MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Bennett to continue Resolution 81, A Resolution approving the
License Agreement between the City of Black Hawk and
Lochsmith, Inc. as owner of the property located at 120 Main
Street, and Resolution 82, A Resolution approving the License
Agreement between the City of Black Hawk and Edward E. Smith,
Shirley J. Smith, Sherell J. Smith, Gregory Street LLC, and
Smithloch LLC, as owners of the properties located at 125, 131,
135, and 141 Gregory Streets to October 22, 2014.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.



7

I. Resolution 83, A
Resolution Approving
an Agreement Between
the City of Black Hawk
and CDG Environmental
for the Purchase of the
Chlorine Dioxide
Generator for the
Hidden Valley Water
Treatment Plant. Mayor Spellman read the title.

Senior Engineer Ford, explained that the Hidden Valley Water
Treatment Plant is approaching the maximum contaminant level
set by the CDPHE and EPA due to the high total organic carbon
contaminants during spring runoff reacting with chlorine to form
disinfection byproducts, which can have negative health effects
and put the City in violation. The proposed generator is the exact
same system being installed at the Dory Hill Water Treatment
Plant. Ford noted that only one bid was received by CDG for
$48,780.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Torres to approve Resolution 83, A Resolution approving an
Agreement between the City of Black Hawk and CDG
Environmental for the purchase of the Chlorine Dioxide Generator
for the Hidden Valley Water Treatment Plant.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

J. Resolution 84, A
Resolution Approving
the Agreement of
Lease Between the
City of Black Hawk as
Lessor and Allensworth
Concepts, LLC as
Lessee for 135 Clear
Creek Street Mayor Spellman read the title.

Finance Director Hillis explained that this was a Transfer of Lease
Agreement for Mountain Mocha for the new owners.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Johnson to approve Resolution 84, A Resolution approving the



8

Agreement of Lease between the City of Black Hawk as Lessor
and Allensworth Concept, LLC as Lessee for 135 Clear Creek
Street.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

K. Resolution 85, A
Resolution Making
Findings of Fact in
Support of the
Decision to Deny
the Appeal of the
Decision by the
Community Planning
and Development
Administrator Regarding
151 Marchant Street Mayor Spellman read the title.

City Attorney Hoffmann explained the history of the appeal. At
their September 24, 2014 meeting, Council conducted a hearing on
an appeal by the property owner. Following the presentation of
evidence, Council moved to deny the appeal and directed the
denial be memorialized in findings of fact.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Midcap MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Johnson to approve Resolution 85, A Resolution making Findings
of Fact in support of the decision to deny the appeal of the decision
by the Community Planning and Development Administrator
regarding 151 Marchant Street.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

L. Resolution 86, A
Resolution Making
Findings of Fact in
Support of the
Decision to Deny
the Appeal of the
Decision by the
Community Planning
and Development
Administrator Regarding
321 High Street Mayor Spellman read the title.



9

City Attorney Hoffmann explained this was the same process as
the previous agenda item.

MOTION TO
APPROVE Alderman Armbright MOVED and was SECONDED by

Alderman Torres to approve Resolution 86, A Resolution making
Findings of Fact in support of the decision to deny the appeal of
the decision by the Community Planning and Development
Administrator regarding 321 High Street.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

9. CITY MANAGER
REPORTS: City Manager Lewis explained the proposed budget will be in their

Dropbox Account by Friday, October 10, 2014, with hard copies to
follow.

City Manager Lewis recommended scheduling the Budget Study Session
for 1:00 p.m. at November 5, 2014. All were in favor.

10. CITY ATTORNEY: City Attorney Hoffmann asked for the minutes to reflect that by
providing the proposed budget into Council’s Dropbox by October
15 satisfies the City Manager’s requirement as per Statute, and that
the hard copies did not have to meet that same date.

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: City Attorney Hoffmann recommended item number 2 and 5 for
executive session for specific legal issues relate to potential
legislation pending litigation and legal advice regarding property
acquisition, as well as legal advice regarding a personnel policy.

MOTION TO
ADJOURN INTO
EXECUTIVE
SESSION Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Johnson to adjourn into Executive Session at 3:30 p.m. to hold a
conference with the City’s Attorney to receive legal advice on
specific legal questions pursuant to C.R.S., § 24-6-402(b) and to
determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to
negotiations, develop a strategy for negotiations, and/or instruct
negotiations, pursuant to C.R.S., § 24-6-402(e).

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.



10

MOTION TO
ADJOURN Alderman Bennett MOVED and was SECONDED by Alderman

Johnson to adjourn the executive session 5:00 p.m.

MOTION PASSED There was no discussion and the motion PASSED unanimously.

12. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Spellman declared the Regular Meeting of the City Council
closed at 5:00 p.m.

____________________________
Melissa Greiner David D. Spellman
City Clerk Mayor



101 HILLSIDE STREET

APPEAL ON A DECISION
BY THE COMMUNITY

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT

ADMINISTRATOR



CITY OF BLACK HAWK
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

SUBJECT: Appeal of a Denial of a request for a Historic Restoration and Community
Preservation Site Work Component Grant

The intent of this submittal is an ‘Appeal’ of the City staff’s decision to partially Deny the grant
request for several improvements around George W. Works home at 101 Hillside Street.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Appeal documentation to be reviewed by the City Council and make
findings to substantiate the decision to uphold the partial Denial; or overturn the decision and
provide direction on next steps for staff.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:
Residential properties within a National Historic Landmark District or within an area listed on
the National Register of Historic Places are allowed to participate in the City of Black Hawk
Historic Preservation Easement Program. Participation in the program is further determined in
Section 3 of the City of Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Guide.

On September 19, 2014 the City of Black Hawk received an Appeal of a Denial for a Historic
Restoration and Community Preservation Program grant from George W. Works, owner of the
property located at 101 Hillside Street.

The proposed Appeal has been reviewed by staff, below, for compliance with Chapter 16
(Zoning Code) Section 16-366 related to an Appeal related to a decision of the Black Hawk
Planning Department staff as authorized thru the Municipal Code.

According to Section 16-366(2) of the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code, “requests for relief
from the regulations and development standards of this Chapter 16 (Zoning) may be taken to the
Board of Appeals (Board of Aldermen) when the strict application of this Chapter will deprive a
property of the privileges enjoyed by other property of the same zoning classification in the same
zoning district because of special circumstances applicable to a property, including its size,
shape, topography, location or surrounding.”

FUNDING SOURCE: 203-0000-5025824

WORKSHOP DATE: October 22, 2014

ESTIMATED DATE OF PROJECT COMPLETION: To be determined

ORIGINATED BY: George W. Works

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report & Appendix 1-7



RECORD: [ ]Yes [X]No

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ ]Yes [ ]No [X]N/A
INITIALS__________

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY:

____________________________________ __________________________________
Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D Administrator Jack D. Lewis, City Manager

10/16/2014

mgreiner
Lewis



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen (as the Board of
Appeals) shall hold a public hearing to hear and decide an appeal on a decision by the
Community Planning and Development Administrator, located on property described in Exhibit
A and generally located at 101 Hillside Street, pursuant to the City of Black Hawk Municipal
Code. Such Appeal has been submitted by the property owner of 101 Hillside Street.

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen (as the Board
of Appeals) on Wednesday, October 22, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter. The
public hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers, located at 211 Church
Street, Black Hawk, CO 80422, or at such other time of place in the event this hearing is
adjourned.

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND

EXHIBIT A
101 Hillside Street
Black Hawk, CO 80422

Legal Summary: S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 004 Lot: 008 THRU:- Lot:
010 PT OF LTS LYING N OF ACCESS RD DESC 500/332 & IMPS

Melissa Greiner
City Clerk



Staff Report



1

CITY OF BLACK HAWK Date prepared: October 10, 2014
PLANNING / LAND USE Meeting Date: October 22, 2014

STAFF REPORT: Appeal of a Denial of a Request for a Historic Restoration and Community
Preservation Site Work Component Grant

For: Board of Appeals (City Council)
Project: 101 Hillside Street – Site Work Component Grant Appeal Case
Property Address: 101 Hillside Street
Applicants: George W. Works, Property Owner/Applicant
Zoning: Historic Residential (HR)
Prepared by: Cynthia Linker, CP&D

BACKGROUND:
On September 19, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an appeal of a denial for a Historic
Restoration and Community Preservation Site Work Component grant from George W. Works,
owner/applicant, of the property located at 101 Hillside Street (see Image 1, red outline). The intent of
this submittal is to appeal the City’s decision to partially deny the grant funding request to repair/replace
all rock walls and fences surrounding Mr. Works’ home. In addition, the application also requested
funds to control erosion at the rear of the house and re-install a previously demolished rock wall at the
intersection of Horn and Hillside Streets. The City has offered to provide funding to repair the rock
walls identified at specific terraced locations and to remove and reattach existing fencing where
applicable on top of specified repaired walls. However, the request for funds to control erosion at the
rear of the house and reconstruction of a previously demolished wall at the intersection of Horn and
Hillside Streets was denied. Mr. Works would like to receive financial support to address all requests
rather than just a portion of those listed.

Image 1: Location and Vicinity Map



2

The Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Program was established for restoration and
preservation of buildings and improvements within the City of Black Hawk. The program provides
assistance under four categories: Full Site and Building Component, Site Work Component, Emergency
Component, and Radon Mitigation Component.

Mr. Works applied for a grant under the Site Work Component. This component is available for site
stabilization and structural support, site drainage, and site remediation of Qualified Properties. Projects
filed under this category may include: the repair or replacement of existing rock walls, the construction
of new rock walls or other type of retaining structures to stabilize or support a site, and site drainage
projects to allow for appropriate drainage to, thru, or from a site. Also, grants under the Site Work
Component can cover site remediation projects and the addition of a fence to secure a perimeter of a
Qualified Property.

Mr. Works’ original application, under the Historic Rock Wall Restoration Program, was received
August 16, 2011 and was placed in the queue. Since funding from this program is no longer available,
Staff requested Mr. Works submit a new Site Work Component grant application, received on June 20,
2014, under the current Historic Restoration and Community Preservation program. The applicant
requested the City repair or replaces all rock walls and fences surrounding his property, assist in
controlling erosion at the rear of the property, and replace a previously demolished rock wall at the
intersection of Horn and Hillside Streets. On July 1, 2014, Consilium Partners, acting as the City’s
Owners Representative, met with the applicant’s sister, Nan Works, to conduct a review of existing
conditions related to the request. As observed by Consilium Partners, the rock walls which create
terraces around the property have deteriorated from age. None of the walls currently exhibit imminent,
significant failure or damage (see Image 2, 3, and 4). The existing fences on top of the deteriorating
walls are in good condition. During the site visit, the applicant indicated that in the past rocks have
fallen down their property from the hillside and impacted the house (Image 5). The tendency for rock
fall in the area behind the property is due to natural conditions and topography of the area (Image 6).
The applicant also indicated there is a need to rebuild a previously demolished rock wall at the
intersection of Horn and Hillside Street. Staff has been unable to evaluate the details of this request as
no specific information for the need or evidence indicating the rock wall previously existed in
photographs or survey was provided or made available by the applicant. If the applicant is unable to
produce evidence of the wall in its previous location and provide a detailed explanation for the necessity
to replace, Staff recommends funding from the Historic Restoration and Community Preservation
Program not be approved.



3

Image 2: Terrace rock wall at 101 Hillside Street

Image 3: Terrace rock wall at 101 Hillside Street



4

Image 4: Terrace rock wall at 101 Hillside Street

Image 5: Rock fall area behind 101 Hillside Street



5

Image 6: Natural conditions behind 101 Hillside Street – looking uphill

Staff from Public Works and Community Planning and Development have also evaluated the application
and report generated by Consilium Partners and recommend the rock walls in specified terraced
locations be repaired. Fencing located on the rock walls identified for preservation shall be removed and
reattached upon completion of the repairs. Staff is not recommending any additional or new fencing.
Staff believes the erosion control and rock fall at the rear of the structure is an applicant responsibility
and should not be addressed by the City. The request to recreate a demolished rock wall that may have
existed along Hillside and Horn cannot be addressed by Staff as the owner was unable to produce
evidence (photographs, survey, etc.) of its previous existence and location or provide an explanation
why the replacement is necessary or how the reconstruction of the wall would benefit the property.

The proposed request for this Appeal has been reviewed by Staff for compliance with Chapter 16
(Zoning Code) Section 16-366 (Variances and Appeals) of the Black Hawk Municipal Code.

APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS:
Section 16-366 (Zoning Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the appeal process. This staff report
summary and catalogue of information relates to the need for the Board of Appeals (City Council) to
review and take action on the Appeal. The Black Hawk Municipal Code requires a public hearing which
necessitates a notice in the paper and a posting on the property. Both the notification and posting have
been completed.

According to Section 16-366(2) of the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code, “requests for relief from the
regulations and development standards of this Chapter 16 (Zoning) may be taken to the Board of
Appeals (Board of Aldermen) when the strict application of this Chapter will deprive a property of the
privileges enjoyed by other property of the same zoning classification in the same zoning district



6

because of special circumstances applicable to a property, including its size, shape, topography,
location or surrounding.”

Residential properties within a National Historic Landmark District or within an area listed on
the National Register of Historic Places are allowed to participate in the City of Black Hawk
Historic Preservation Easement Program. Participation in the program is further determined in
Section 3 of the City of Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Guide.

Excerpts from:
The City of Black Hawk

Municipal Code
Chapter 16 – Zoning Code

Sect.16-366. Variances and appeals.
All appeals of decisions and requests for a variance shall be processed as described below.

(1) Appeals of decisions.
a. Who may apply. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be made by any person aggrieved by the

inability to obtain a building permit (except where inability to obtain a building permit is due to denial
of rezoning application by the Board of Aldermen or by decision of any administrative officer in the City
based upon or made in the course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of this
Chapter). Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be made by any officer, department, board or bureau of
the City affected by the grant or refusal of the building permit or by other decision of the administrative
officer or agency, based on or made in the course of administration or enforcement of this regulation.

b. Time limit. Appeals to the Board of Appeals must be made in writing and filed with the City
Clerk within ten (10) days of the action or decision appealed.

c. Stay of proceedings. An appeal stays all proceedings and furtherance of the action appealed
from unless the officer from whom the appeal is taken certified to the Board of Appeals, after the notice
of appeal shall have been filed with him or her, that by reason of facts stated in the certificate, a stay
would, in his or her opinion, cause imminent peril of life and property, in which case proceedings shall
not be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order which may be granted by the Board of Appeals or a
court of record on application and on notice to the officer from whom the appeal is taken and on due
cause shown.

(3) Hearing. Hearings of the Board of Appeals shall commence no later than the next regularly
scheduled meeting following the completion of required notice procedure. The Board of Appeals may
continue a hearing as may be necessary to obtain necessary information and make its decision. Public
hearings shall be conducted in the manner provided in this Code.

In considering such Appeal requests the Board of Appeals needs to evaluate the information provided by
the applicant, information available and provided from staff, and then make findings of fact related to
the Appeal criteria below. Some of the criteria have been worded and set to be related to the Appeal of
an Administrative Decision to not approve a requested Grant application from the property owner so
that the Board of Appeals can learn the background, evaluate the information, compare it to relevant
criteria, and then make Findings to overturn the Denial and allow a Grant application to proceed for



7

the related and necessary work; or to agree with Denial and not authorize any further proceedings
related to a Grant application:

1. Due to exceptional and extraordinary circumstances unique to the property or structure for which
the appeal is sought, the strict enforcement of the provisions of the Grant Program would cause an
unnecessary hardship to the applicant.
Many Staff have visited the property at 101 Hillside Street. It is important to note Consilium
Partners and Public Works were only tasked with performing a site visit and to provide initial
opinions on the condition of the existing rock walls and other items requested on the
application. Although both parties have civil engineer backgrounds, neither party was tasked
with performing a thorough investigation. This task would be accomplished by the City’s on-
call Civil / Structural Engineer as the need arises.

The house was built into a hillside and natural conditions are not the typical, being somewhat
unique to the property and the surrounding area. The structures are situated on a hillside that
naturally requires the site to utilize terraced rock walls for soil erosion and control. The
structures underwent full rehabilitation in 2005. If any concern about the structural integrity
of the walls existed, it would have been noted during the 2005 rehabilitation. No significant or
immediate damage to the existing structures or failure of the terraced rock walls seem evident
or imminent. To Staff’s knowledge, no previous or current reports of significant damage to
the existing structures or failure of the rock walls have been reported. It appears the
deteriorated condition of the rock walls is due to the natural environmental elements combined
with owner neglect. This combination has contributed to the deterioration to the point where
rehabilitation would be beneficial. The walls are original to the property and appear to have
been erected near the turn of the century (1900s). Staff believes rehabilitation and repair
would greatly contribute to the general aesthetics, appearance and historic significance of the
property. The site visit revealed a significant level of owner neglect of the existing walls.
Vegetation in some areas around the walls has not been cleared for a significant amount of
time and has contributed to the reported wall problems and deterioration.

Based on historic images, the existing fence on top of terraced walls has been in place for
approximately 10 years. General appearance of the fence and its condition is good. Staff
recommends the fencing located on the walls identified for rehabilitation shall be removed and
reattached upon completion of the repair. No additional or new fence work is proposed.

The current soil conditions above the house have been present since the house was first
constructed. The property is situated on a hillside that has loose soil and fractured weathering
rock and is covered with vegetation that provides support for some of the soil. These natural
conditions existed prior to and after the construction of the house in the late 1800s. No
previous reports or significant damage to the house have been reported in the past to staff’s
knowledge. Significant or immediate damage or danger does not seem evident. Soil erosion due
to the surrounding topography is expected to be a normal occurrence. Scheduled maintenance
of the area at the back of the house could prevent rocks from sliding down the hill. This
maintenance should be part of the applicant’s general upkeep of the property.



8

2. The Appeal requested is the minimum deviation or solution necessary;
The applicant is requesting all items listed on the application to be approved for funding. This
request conflicts with the decision of Staff to only approve grant funding for the areas
determined to be in need of rehabilitation or repair. Items such as erosion control fall strictly
under general homeowner maintenance responsibilities and as such cannot be taken care with
grant funding. The request to recreate a demolished rock wall that may have existed along
Hillside and Horn cannot be addressed as the owner was unable to produce evidence
(photographs, survey, etc.) of its previous existence and location or explain why the
replacement is necessary and how the reconstruction of the wall would benefit the property.

A variety of options are available for the property owner. One of those options is to accept the
City’s offer to repair some of the existing walls and fences and address all other issues through
alternative means of funding by the property owner. The existing terrace rock walls are not in
dire need of repair. However, the City has offered to repair those walls since they have been in
place since the house was originally built. The repair of the walls will contribute to the general
aesthetics and the appearance of the historic area.

The owner has various options to prevent the rock fall and ground erosion to settle behind the
house. General maintenance and removal of rocks of the property behind the house would
prevent rocks from sliding down the hillside.

3. The granting of the Appeal will be consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the Grant
Program and will not create a situation which alters the character of the area surrounding the
property for which the Appeal is granted;
The granting of the Appeal would not be consistent with the spirit, purpose or intent of the
Grant program. The goal and essence of the grant program is to provide resources to promote
the rehabilitation and historic preservation of Qualified Properties. The City has offered to
assist the owner with repairing the terraced walls that have been in place for a significant
period of time and have deteriorated over time due to age, weather and neglect. The
preservation of the walls would greatly contribute to the overall appearance, quality and
historic significance of the property and area in general.

The grant program is not designed to have the City perform maintenance for property owners
with slopes on their property that may have unstable rock, debris, or extreme topography. It
would seem appropriate that the owner would work to clear their own land of any perceived
unstable rock or debris. The grant program is not designed to specifically maintain all
residents’ property with normal mountainous terrain, which is typical for the City of Black
Hawk.

The grant program is not intended to have the City perform maintenance for property owners
who simply own a lot and/or a building located in the Historic Residential zone district and
Historic Landmark District. For this reason, City Staff believes funding to provide soil erosion
control and rock fall behind the property owner’s home should be denied. It would seem
appropriate that the owner would provide their own general maintenance to limit the amount
of erosion and rock fall on their property.



9

4. The Appeal will secure and in no way diminish the public safety and welfare; nor impair prevention
of or increase risk of fire; flood, traffic congestion or other hazard; (at a reasonable cost)
No previous or current reports of significant damage to the house due to soil erosion or the
collapse of any rock walls due to deterioration have been reported in the past or present to
staff’s knowledge.

STAFF COMMENTS:
The applicant is requesting grant funding for several improvements around the property at 101 Hillside
Street. The original request included a repair or replacement of all rock walls that create terraces around
the house, fence replacement, erosion control, and replacement of previously removed rock wall at the
perimeter of the house near the intersection of Horn and Hillside Streets.

After visiting the property and considering the information provided by the Owners Representative and
the Public Works Department, Staff believes the terraced rock walls are eligible to be rehabilitated in
specific locations due to age, deterioration and simple neglect. Additionally, since the fence currently
atop the terraced rock walls is in good condition, Staff recommends the fence be removed and replaced
upon completion of the rehabilitation. No additional or new fence is being proposed. It is important to
note Staff and Public Works observed a significant lack of maintenance around the existing terraced
rock walls.

This home has previously undergone a full restoration. If any concern about loose soil was identified
during the restoration, the property owner would have been informed about it. Since it is believed that
the owner was fully aware of conditions on the property prior to purchase, it seems fair to expect that it
would be the owner’s responsibility to maintain his or her own property and keep the loose rocks and
debris to a minimum with regular maintenance.

Remediation of soil erosion and reported rock fall is not the responsibility of the City. The reported issue
should be taken care of by the property owner as part of their general property maintenance. Staff
considers soil erosion maintenance the sole responsibility of the owner. The property owner should have
been aware of the existing natural conditions since these conditions would have been evident at the time
the property was purchased. It seems fair to expect that it would be the owner’s responsibility to
maintain his and her own property and keep any deterioration to a minimum with regular maintenance.
Staff believes that the applicant should explore an alternative solution regarding their concern to
maintain the soil erosion. These items are considered general homeowner maintenance items and the
City is unable to accommodate the request for their maintenance improvement.

Lastly, Staff recommends the City not provide funding to rebuild a previously removed rock wall at the
intersection of Horn Street and Hillside Street as the applicant was unable to provide sufficient evidence
and information to support the previous existence of this wall as part of the request. If the applicant is
unable to produce evidence of the wall in its previous location and provide a detailed explanation for the
necessity to replace, Staff recommends funding from the Historic Restoration and Community
Preservation Program not be approved.

The City of Black Hawk is willing to assist the applicant as indicated in the correspondence dated
September 11, 2014 and provide partial support for maintenance and improvements on the property.



10

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Appeal documentation to be reviewed by the City Council and make findings to
substantiate the decision to uphold the partial Denial; or overturn the decision and provide direction on
next steps for Staff.

APPENDIX:

1. Grant request application
2. Grant request application denial letter
3. Consilium Partners – Site work Grant Request
4. Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form
5. Public Works comments
6. Applicant appeal email
7. Applicant appeal letter



Appendix 1 

101 Hillside Street 



zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 1









Appendix 2 

101 Hillside Street 

 



City of Black Hawk  
Community Planning and Development   
211 Church Street 
P.O. Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO  80422 
Ph: 303-582-0615 / 303-582-2223 or Fax: 303-582-2239 

 

N:\PLANNING LLC\141 Planning Black Hawk\2014 Black Hawk Planning Cases\P-14-39 101 Hillside St Appeal - Works\Applicant 
Submittal\Denial Letter\140909 101 Hillside Street Sitework Grant Denial Letter.docx 

 
 
September 11, 2014 
 
George Works 
Nan Works 
1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 4580 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
 
RE: 101 Hillside Street – Application for Site Work 
 
Dear George and Nan: 
 
We are writing on behalf of the City of Black Hawk to inform you Community Planning & Development has 
reviewed and partially approved your application for grant funds to address the rock walls, stairs and 
fences at your property at 101 Hillside Street.  The City Manager has informed City Council of the 
decision.  You have the right to appeal this decision to the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen if you 
choose to do so, per the terms of the current Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Fund 
Guide to Programs (attached).  Please be aware an appeal must be filed within 10 days of this letter, or 
September 21, 2014. 
 
The requested scopes of work have been approved/denied as follows: 
 

1. Rock wall repair/replacement in requested terrace locations will be addressed 
2. Fence replacement where applicable on top of any replaced walls will be addressed – If rock wall 

is only repaired and fence is not impacted, fence replacement will not be included in those areas 
3. Erosion control at the rear of the house will not be addressed 
4. Installation of previously removed rock walls at the perimeter of the property at the intersection of 

Horn/Hillside Streets will not be addressed 
 
You are able to contract and complete the denied work yourself.  You will be required to obtain a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for the work once a scope is established, which will need to be reviewed by 
the Historic Preservation Commission and City Council.  Dates for these meetings, and deadlines for 
turning in documents for information packets, are available from the Community Planning and 
Development office. 
 
Please let us know if you have any additional questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jessica M. Killian, PE, LEED GA 
Senior Project Manager 
 
CC: Cynthia L. Linker and Tami Archer – City of Black Hawk  
 
Encl: Application, Appeal Guidelines 

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 2



Appendix 3 

101 Hillside Street 

 



  

 

 

101 Hillside Street – Sitework Grant Request 
 
The property owners at 101 Hillside Street have requested a Sitework Component Community 
Restoration and Historic Preservation Fund Grant for repair/replacement of all rock walls and fences 
throughout their property (see attached application request).  On July 1, 2014, Consilium Partners met 
with Nan Works (“Owner”) to review the existing conditions related to this request. 
 
Based on Consilium Partners’ review and the attached pictures, Consilium Partners notes the rock walls 
which create the terraces around the property appear to be original walls that have deteriorated from age.  
Although continued deterioration is likely, Consilium Partners did not observe any areas of significant 
failure, or potential damage to any structures.  However, if a failure occurs, certain damage to fences or 
yard areas may occur.  The fences currently installed at the property appear to be sufficient and in 
average condition. 
 
At the rear of the house, large rocks have fallen down the hillside and impacted the house, causing minor 
damage.  Due to the slope of the hillside and the location of downfall, there does not appear to be a long 
term solution for structure protection in this area.  The hill could be scarified and then a protective netting 
placed if there is a continued concern for major damage.  
 
Cosmetic repairs are recommended for certain rock walls around the property, if deemed acceptable by 
the City. 
 
Thank you, 
Jessica Killian 
Consilium Partners 
July 17, 2014 
  

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 3



  

 

 
Photographs of Existing Conditions 
 

 
 
Existing terraced walls 
 
 

 
 



  

 

Existing terraced walls 
 

 
 
Existing terraced walls 
 
 

 
 
Fencing 



  

 

 
 
 

 
 
Rockfall area 
 
 

 
 



  

 

Hillside above house 
 
 
 

 
 
Evidence of rockfall behind house 
 



Appendix 4 

101 Hillside Street 

 



 BLACK HAWK CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY     

 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form    

 (page 1 of 2) 
 
 

1. Current Address:  101 Hillside 
 

2. Resource Number:  5GL.7.425                                                                      3.  NHL Resource Number: B4-3 
 
4. Resource Name:                                                                                         

5. Purpose of this current site visit (check as many as apply) 

         Site is within a current project area 

   X    Resurvey 

   X    Update of previous site form(s) 
         Surface collection 
          Testing to determine eligibility 
         Excavation 
         Other 

  

6. Previous Recordings:  

   X     1986 National Park Service Survey    X    Photograph 

   X     1991 National Historic Landmark Nomination      No Photographs                    X    Contributing  

   X      1998 Re-survey    X    Photograph 

   X      2004 Photo survey    X    Photograph   

            Other:            Photograph 

  

7. Exterior alterations since 1986:  1997 – Historic preservation permit valuation $25,000.  1998 – Historic 

preservation permit valuation $3,800.  2001 – Unspecified repairs, permit valuation $25,000.  2005 – 
Historic preservation restoration, permit valuation $96,000; new stem wall and flooring, $30,000.   
Alterations include replacing non-historic wide siding.   

 

8. Additional historical background:  The house is visible in a historic photograph purportedly dating from 

1890.  The bunkhouse is not visible in photographs dating from ca. 1912.  The Sanborn Maps do not 
cover Hillside.  Deed research may determine a more accurate construction date.   

 

 

 

Ca. 1885         Construction date           Estimate from 1986 NPS Survey     X     New estimate 

Sources of information:  

 Sanborn Maps 

      1886   

      1890 

      1895 

      1900

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 4



Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                     (page 2 of 2) 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 

     

9. Changes to Location or Size Information: n/a 

 

10. Revised National Historic Landmark District- Contributing Building Eligibility Assessment:  

 Contributing   X         Non contributing              Need data  X  (might count as 2 contributing buildings with 

additional research on bunk house) 
 

11. National Register - Individual Eligibility Assessment: 

 Eligible            Not eligible              Need data    X   

 

12.  Is there National Register district potential?  Yes   X        No              

 Discuss: This property would contain two contributing buildings to a potential N.R. district if additional 

research confirms historic construction date for bunkhouse. 
 

13. Local Designation - Individual Eligibility Assessment:  

 Eligible   X         Not eligible              Need data   

 

14.  Is there Local district potential?  Yes   X       No              

 Discuss: This property would contain two contributing buildings to a potential N.R. district. 

 

15. Photograph Types and Numbers: Digital, <.jpg> format.  -1.JPG 

 

16. Report Title: Black Hawk Historic Resource Resurvey:  2009-2010 

 

17. Recorder(s):  Deon Wolfenbarger 18. Date(s): July 20, 2010 

 

19. Recorder Affiliation: Three Gables Preservation 

 

20. Attachments                     21. Official determination  
 (check as many as apply)             (OAHP USE ONLY) 
   X   Photographs         Determined Eligible 
        Site sketch map         Determined Not Eligible 
        U.S.G.S. map photocopy         Need Data 

   X   Other                                 Nominated 
        Other                                 Listed 
             Contributing to N.R. District 
             Not Contributing to N.R. Dist 



Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 
Current Photographs 

Date:  04/09/2009 & 1/19/2010 

 

 
 

 



Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 
 
 

2004 Photograph 
 

 
 

 



Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 

 
1998 Resurvey Photograph 

 
 
 

1986 Survey Photograph 

 



Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 
 

Gilpin County Assessor’s Photographs 

   

   
 
 

Historic photograph 

 
Ca. 1899 



 

Current Address:  101 Hillside                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.425                                                      

NHL Resource Number: B4-3 
 
 

Historic photographs (cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ca. 1912 
 
 



Appendix 5 

101 Hillside Street 

 



From: Tom Isbester
Sent: Monday, July 21, 2014 11:24 AM
To: Cynthia Linker
Subject: RE: 101 Hillside Sitework Request

Cynthia:

I kind of agree with Jessica in that the smaller terrace walls could stand to be reconstructed as they
appear to be original, and over time have deteriorated. However, there has obviously been years of
complete neglect which I think should be mentioned. Some of the shrubbery that has been left
unchecked has contributed to the problems. There is nothing to do on the rear of the structure. It has
lasted 100+ years. Homeowner needs to address anything that looks suspect and scale it off. Fences
appear to be fine except for complete neglect again. I can’t read what they have written on the request
but appears to point to the City being responsible for some of it which is a misunderstanding, and on
that aspect would concur with your approach.

Thomas Isbester
City of Black Hawk Public Works Director
987 Miners Mesa Road
P.O. Box 68
Black Hawk, CO 80422
303-582-1324

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 5



Appendix 6 

101 Hillside Street 

 



1

Zeljko Spiric

From: G W Works <g.w.works@att.net>
Sent: Friday, September 19, 2014 10:11 AM
To: Cynthia Linker; Jessica Killian
Subject: Appeal of staff decision to deny portions of site restoration for 101 hillside, blackhawk 

co.

We are pleased that the city of black hawk has granted a portion of the long awaited grant request for site restoration 
for 101 hillside street.  We hereby appeal the staff decision to deny the other requested and shall visit in detail regarding 
the status of same in the near future...I should should add to this appeal, that to make a reasonable determination the 
city should be forthcoming regarding the actual survey of the property and city property to ascertain the 
appropriateness of the appeal.   Thanks again,    George Works 
 
Sent from my iPad 

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 6



Appendix 7 

101 Hillside Street 

 



zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 7



11

Applicant's Submittal

Applicant’s additional information on following pages provided to the City of Black Hawk
for consideration by City Council with this Appeal case



1

Zeljko Spiric

From: G W Works <g.w.works@att.net>
Sent: Friday, September 19, 2014 10:11 AM
To: Cynthia Linker; Jessica Killian
Subject: Appeal of staff decision to deny portions of site restoration for 101 hillside, blackhawk 

co.

We are pleased that the city of black hawk has granted a portion of the long awaited grant request for site restoration 
for 101 hillside street.  We hereby appeal the staff decision to deny the other requested and shall visit in detail regarding 
the status of same in the near future...I should should add to this appeal, that to make a reasonable determination the 
city should be forthcoming regarding the actual survey of the property and city property to ascertain the 
appropriateness of the appeal.   Thanks again,    George Works 
 
Sent from my iPad 





171 MARCHANT STREET

APPEAL ON A DECISION
BY THE COMMUNITY

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT

ADMINISTRATOR



CITY OF BLACK HAWK
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

SUBJECT: Appeal of a Denial of a request for a Historic Restoration and Community
Preservation Site Work Component Grant

The intent of this submittal is an ‘Appeal’ of the City staff’s decision to partially Deny the grant
request for several improvements around George W. Works home at 171 Marchant Street.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Appeal documentation to be reviewed by the City Council and make
findings to substantiate the decision to uphold the Denial; or overturn the decision and provide
direction on next steps for staff.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:
Residential properties within a National Historic Landmark District or within an area listed on
the National Register of Historic Places are allowed to participate in the City of Black Hawk
Historic Preservation Easement Program. Participation in the program is further determined in
Section 3 of the City of Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Guide.

On September 19, 2014 the City of Black Hawk received an Appeal of a Denial for a Historic
Restoration and Community Preservation Program grant from George W. Works, owner of the
property located at 171 Marchant Street.

The proposed Appeal has been reviewed by staff, below, for compliance with Chapter 16
(Zoning Code) Section 16-366 related to an Appeal related to a decision of the Black Hawk
Planning Department staff as authorized thru the Municipal Code.

According to Section 16-366(2) of the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code, “requests for relief
from the regulations and development standards of this Chapter 16 (Zoning) may be taken to the
Board of Appeals (Board of Aldermen) when the strict application of this Chapter will deprive a
property of the privileges enjoyed by other property of the same zoning classification in the same
zoning district because of special circumstances applicable to a property, including its size,
shape, topography, location or surrounding.”

FUNDING SOURCE: 203-0000-5025824

WORKSHOP DATE: October 22, 2014

ESTIMATED DATE OF PROJECT COMPLETION: To be determined

ORIGINATED BY: George W. Works

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Staff Report, Appendix 1-7

RECORD: [ ]Yes [X]No



CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ ]Yes [ ]No [X]N/A
INITIALS__________

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY:

10/15/14_____ __________________________________
Cynthia L. Linker, CP&D Administrator Jack D. Lewis, City Manager

10/17/14

MMartin
Jack Lewis



Staff Report



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen (as the Board of
Appeals) shall hold a public hearing to hear and decide an appeal on a decision by the
Community Planning and Development Administrator, located on property described in Exhibit
A and generally located at 171 Marchant Street, pursuant to the City of Black Hawk Municipal
Code. Such Appeal has been submitted by the property owner of 171 Marchant Street.

The public hearing is to be held before the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen (as the Board
of Appeals) on Wednesday, October 22, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter. The
public hearing shall be held in the City of Black Hawk Council Chambers, located at 211 Church
Street, Black Hawk, CO 80422, or at such other time of place in the event this hearing is
adjourned.

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND

EXHIBIT A
171 Marchant Street
Black Hawk, CO 80422

Legal Summary: S: 7 T: 3S R: 72W Subd: BLACK HAWK Block: 008 Lot: 001 THRU:- Lot:
003 (UND 1/2) W 27FT & IMPS

Melissa Greiner
City Clerk



1

CITY OF BLACK HAWK Date prepared: October 10, 2014
PLANNING / LAND USE Meeting Date: October 22, 2014

STAFF REPORT: Appeal of a Denial of a Request for a Historic Restoration and Community
Preservation Site Component Grant

For: Board of Appeals (City Council)
Project: 171 Marchant Street - Site Work Component Grant Appeal Case
Property Address: 171 Marchant Street
Applicants: George W. Works, Applicant/Property Owner
Zoning: Historic Residential (HR)
Prepared by: Cynthia Linker, CP&D

BACKGROUND:
On September 19, 2014, the City of Black Hawk received an appeal of a denial for a Historic
Restoration and Community Preservation Program Site Work Component grant from George W. Works,
applicant/owner of the property located at 171 Marchant Street (see Image 1, red outline). The intent of
this submittal is to appeal the City’s decision to partially deny the grant funding request for retaining
rock wall work, repairs to stairs and fences, and remediation of water intrusion inside of the structure at
Mr. Works’ home. The City has offered to repair the existing stairs that lead to the front of the house.
All other requests were denied.

Image 1: Location and Vicinity Map



2

The Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Program was established for restoration and
preservation of buildings and improvements within the City of Black Hawk. The program provides
assistance under four categories: Full Site and Building Component, Site Work Component, Emergency
Component, and Radon Mitigation Component.

Mr. Works applied for the grant under Site Work Component. This component is available for site
stabilization and structural support, site drainage, and site remediation of Qualified Properties. Projects
filed under this category may include: the repair or replacement of existing rock walls, the construction
of new rock walls or other type of retaining structures to stabilize or support a site, and site drainage
projects to allow for appropriate drainage to, thru, or from a site. Also, grants under the Site Work
Component can cover site remediation projects and the addition of a fence to secure a perimeter of a
Qualified Property.

Mr. Works’ original application, under the Historic Rock Wall Restoration Program, was received June
21, 2011 and was placed in the queue. Since funding for this program is no longer available, Staff
requested Mr. Works submit a new Site Work Component grant application, received June 20, 2014,
under the current Historic Restoration and Community Preservation program. On July 1, 2014
Consilium Partners, acting as the City’s Owners Representative, met with the applicant’s sister, Nan
Works, to conduct a review of existing conditions related to the request. As observed by Consilium
Partners, the retaining wall along Marchant Street appears to be bowing out (see Image 2). In addition,
the applicant has indicated that repairs to the stairs and fence are needed as well as remediation of water
intrusion inside of the home. The review of conditions revealed that the stairs and fence are in fair
condition (Image 3 and 4). The stairs are in need or repair due to normal wear and tear. However, the
fence appears to be in good condition and perceived damage is due to natural weathering. The applicant
has indicated exterior water intrusion is due to the drainage swale at the back of the house filling up with
water. Due to natural erosion from the hillside, the swale has filled with dirt which has allowed the
drains to become completely blocked. Consilium Partners indicated that homeowner maintenance for
this part of the house has not been maintained in a frequent enough manner and the water intrusion is a
direct result from lack of homeowner maintenance to keep the drains and drainage swale clear and free
of debris (see Image 5, 6, 7 and 8).



3

Image 2: Retaining wall along 171 Marchant Street

Consilium Partners recommended the on-call structural engineer for the City of Black Hawk investigate
the current condition of the retaining wall along Marchant Street. The repair of the stairs and fence could
be considered for repair if the City feels it appropriate.

Image 3: Condition of stairs at 171 Marchant Street



4

Image 4: Condition of stairs at 171 Marchant Street

Image 5: 171 Marchant Street drainage swale



5

Image 6: 171 Marchant Street location of potential water intrusion

Image 7: 171 Marchant Street debris at west drain



6

Image 8: 171 Marchant Street potential location of blocked drain

Staff from Public Works and Community Planning and Development has evaluated the application,
report generated by Consilium Partners and agrees the concrete stairs leading from Marchant Street up
to the front entrance is eligible under the grant program and recommend the stairway be replaced with
code compliant concrete stairs. No integral color or paint will be included with the staircase
replacement. Staff believes the wooden fence running along the south side of the property is in fair
condition and any minor repairs required would fall under homeowner maintenance. Remediation of
water intrusion also falls under homeowner maintenance. The applicant is responsible for keeping the
drainage swale and drains free and clear of debris. Although further investigation by an engineer was
recommended for the front wall along Marchant Street, none of the walls on the property appear to have
areas of significant failure or identifiable damage to surrounding structures.

The proposed request for an Appeal has been reviewed by staff for compliance with Chapter 16 (Zoning
Code) Section 16-366 (Variances and Appeals) of the Black Hawk Municipal Code.

APPLICABLE CITY OF BLACK HAWK REGULATIONS:
Section 16-366 (Zoning Code) of the Municipal Code regulates the appeal process. This staff report
summary and catalogue of information relates to the need for the Board of Appeals (City Council) to
review and take action on the Appeal. The Black Hawk Municipal Code requires a public hearing which
necessitates a notice in the paper and a posting on the property. Both the notification and posting have
been completed.

According to Section 16-366(2) of the City of Black Hawk Municipal Code, “requests for relief from the
regulations and development standards of this Chapter 16 (Zoning) may be taken to the Board of
Appeals (Board of Aldermen) when the strict application of this Chapter will deprive a property of the
privileges enjoyed by other property of the same zoning classification in the same zoning district



7

because of special circumstances applicable to a property, including its size, shape, topography,
location or surrounding.”

Residential properties within a National Historic Landmark District or within an area listed on
the National Register of Historic Places are allowed to participate in the City of Black Hawk
Historic Preservation Easement Program. Participation in the program is further determined in
Section 3 of the City of Black Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Guide.

Excerpts from:
The City of Black Hawk

Municipal Code
Chapter 16 – Zoning Code

Sect.16-366. Variances and appeals.
All appeals of decisions and requests for a variance shall be processed as described below.

(1) Appeals of decisions.
a. Who may apply. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be made by any person aggrieved by the

inability to obtain a building permit (except where inability to obtain a building permit is due to denial
of rezoning application by the Board of Aldermen or by decision of any administrative officer in the City
based upon or made in the course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter.
Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be made by any officer, department, board or bureau of the City
affected by the grant or refusal of the building permit or by other decision of the administrative officer
or agency, based on or made in the course of administration or enforcement of this regulation.

b. Time limit. Appeals to the Board of Appeals must be made in writing and filed with the City
Clerk within ten (10) days of the action or decision appealed.

c. Stay of proceedings. An appeal stays all proceedings and furtherance of the action appealed
from unless the officer from whom the appeal is taken certified to the Board of Appeals, after the notice
of appeal shall have been filed with him or her, that by reason of facts stated in the certificate, a stay
would, in his or her opinion, cause imminent peril of life and property, in which case proceedings shall
not be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order which may be granted by the Board of Appeals or a
court of record on application and on notice to the officer from whom the appeal is taken and on due
cause shown.

(3) Hearing. Hearings of the Board of Appeals shall commence no later than the next regularly
scheduled meeting following the completion of required notice procedure. The Board of Appeals may
continue a hearing as may be necessary to obtain necessary information and make its decision. Public
hearings shall be conducted in the manner provided in this Code.

In considering such Appeal requests the Board of Appeals needs to evaluate the information provided by
the applicant, information available and provided from staff, and then make findings of fact related to
the Appeal criteria below. Some of the criteria have been worded and set to be related to the Appeal of
an Administrative Decision to not approve a requested Grant application from the property owner so
that the Board of Appeals can learn the background, evaluate the information, compare it to relevant
criteria, and then make Findings to overturn the Denial and allow a Grant application to proceed for



8

related and necessary work; or to agree with Denial and not authorize any further proceedings related
to a Grant application:

1. Due to exceptional and extraordinary circumstances unique to the property or structure for which
the appeal is sought, the strict enforcement of the provisions of the Grant Program would cause an
unnecessary hardship to the applicant.
Many Staff have visited the property at 171 Marchant Street. It is important to note
Consilium Partners and Public Works were only tasked with performing a site visit and to
provide initial opinions on the condition of the existing rock walls and other items requested on
the application. Although both parties have civil engineer backgrounds, neither party was
tasked with performing a thorough investigation. This task would be accomplished by the
City’s on-call Civil / Structural Engineer as the need arises.

The house was built into a hillside and natural conditions are not typical but somewhat unique
to the property and the area. The property is situated on a hillside that naturally required the
property to utilize retaining walls for soil control throughout the property. Review of historic
images shows the rock walls have been in place since at least the 1900s. The house underwent
full renovation in 2005. If any concern about the structural integrity of the walls existed, it
would have been noted during the 2005 renovations. No significant or immediate damage to
existing structures or failure of the rock walls seem evident or imminent. No previous report
of significant property damage or rock wall failure of any kind has been reported to Staff’s
knowledge. Further evaluation of the Marchant Street wall by a certified engineer is likely
before recommending any need for repair or replacement.

The existing fence has been in place for an extensive time period. Based on the historic images,
the entire or a portion of the fence is approximately, 28 years old. Natural weather conditions
have most likely led to its current appearance and condition. As such, it is appropriate to
recommend the applicant be responsible for regular property maintenance.

The current soil erosion conditions above the house have been present since the house was first
constructed and is expected to be a normal occurrence. Regularly scheduled maintenance of
the swale at the back of the house by the applicant would prevent the drains from clogging,
overfilling and permitting water to then enter the house.

2. The Appeal requested is the minimum deviation or solution necessary;
A variety of options are available for the property owner. The site visit observation of the
retaining rock walls did not indicate an immediate or urgent need to repair or replace. Repair
or replacement of these walls would likely be very expensive and is impractical at this time.
Leaving the walls ‘as is’ is likely the best solution.

The applicant, as part of a regular property maintenance program, could make any associated
repairs to extend the life of the wooden fence.

Similarly, the owner has the option to prevent the intrusion of water into the house by regular
cleaning of the swale and unclogging the swale drains so as to prevent water accumulation.



9

3. The granting of the Appeal will be consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the Grant
Program and will not create a situation which alters the character of the area surrounding the
property for which the Appeal is granted;
The granting of the Appeal would not be consistent with the spirit, purpose or intent of the
Grant program. The goal and essence of the grant program is to provide resources to promote
the rehabilitation and historic preservation of Qualified Properties.

The City has offered to assist the owner by replacing the front staircase, since this item was not
addressed during the 2005 renovation. Replacing the staircase would greatly contribute to the
overall appearance and quality of the property and surrounding area in general.

4. The Appeal will secure and in no way diminish the public safety and welfare; nor impair prevention
of or increase risk of fire; flood, traffic congestion or other hazard; (at a reasonable cost)
No previous or current reports of significant damage to any structures due to soil erosion or
the collapse of any rock walls due to deterioration have been reported in the past or present to
staff’s knowledge.

STAFF COMMENTS:
The applicant is requesting funds for several improvements around the house at 171 Marchant Street.
The original request included retaining rock wall repairs, fence replacement, replacement of the existing
front concrete stairs, and remediation of water intrusion into the house.

After visiting the property and considering all the information provided, Staff is under the impression
that it would be unnecessary to repair the existing retaining rock walls. It is important to note the Public
Works Department and Consilium Partners were only tasked with performing a site visit and provide
initial opinions on the quality of the existing wall. Although both parties have civil engineer
backgrounds, neither party was tasked with performing a thorough investigation. This task would be
accomplished by the City’s on-call Civil / Structural Engineer as the need arises.

Also, the existing fence, located on top of the retaining rock wall, is in fair condition and general
maintenance by the owner could improve its appearance and longevity.

Remediation of water intrusion is not the responsibility of the City. The reported damage appears to be a
direct result from intrusion of water due to the lack of maintenance of the swale and swale drains at the
back of the house. The maintenance of the swale and drains is the responsibility of the homeowner.

In addition, this home has undergone a full restoration. If any concern about the condition of the rock
walls, fence and the swale was identified during the restoration, the property owner would have been
informed about it. Since it is believed that the owner was fully aware of conditions on the property prior
to purchase, it seems fair to expect that it would be the owner’s responsibility to maintain his or her own
property and keep any deterioration to a minimum with regular maintenance.



10

Staff is aware that other property owners in the City have applied for grants in the past and that
sometimes certain items have been approved for repair or replacement. The circumstances under which
those grants were allowed were different, with the grant program evolving and the amount of funding
available as well as the policies of the grant program and the amount of available funds over the years.

The applicant always has the option to explore alternative solutions regarding his concerns for the
condition of the retaining rock walls, fence and water intrusion into the house at his own expense.

As indicated in the correspondence dated September 9, 2014, the City is willing to assist the applicant
and provide partial support for improvements on the property. The City will address the request to
replace the existing stairs that lead from Marchant Street up to the front entrance of the house with a
code compliant concrete stair in kind, excluding integral color or paint. As noted, the stairs were not part
of the original rehabilitation in 2005.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Appeal documentation to be reviewed by the City Council and make findings to
substantiate the decision to uphold the partial Denial; or overturn the decision and provide direction on
next steps for staff.

APPENDIX:

1. Grant request application
2. Grant request application denial letter
3. Consilium Partners – Site Work Grant Request
4. Public Works Department comments
5. Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form
6. Applicant appeal email
7. Applicant appeal letter



Appendix 1 

171 Marchant Street 



zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 1



















Appendix 2 

171 Marchant Street 



City of Black Hawk  
Community Planning and Development   
211 Church Street 
P.O. Box 68 
Black Hawk, CO  80422 
Ph: 303-582-0615 / 303-582-2223 or Fax: 303-582-2239 

 

N:\PLANNING LLC\141 Planning Black Hawk\2014 Black Hawk Planning Cases\P-14-40 171 Marchant St Appeal – 
Works\Applicant Submittal\Denial Letter\140909 171 Marchant Street Sitework Grant Denial Letter.docx 

 
 
September 9, 2014 
 
George Works 
Nan Works 
1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 4580 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
 
RE: 171 Marchant Street – Application for Site Work 
 
Dear George and Nan: 
 
We are writing on behalf of the City of Black Hawk to inform you Community Planning and Development 
has reviewed and partially approved your application for grant funds to address the rock walls, stairs and 
fences at your property at 171 Marchant Street.  The City Manager has informed City Council of the 
decision.  You have the right to appeal this decision to the City of Black Hawk Board of Aldermen if you 
choose to do so, per the terms of the current Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Fund 
Guide to Programs (attached).  Please be aware an appeal must be filed within 10 days of this letter, or 
September 19, 2014. 
 
The requested scopes of work have been approved/denied as follows: 

1. Rock wall repair/replacement shall not be addressed  
2. Repairs to the wooden fence shall not be addressed 
3. Remediation of water intrusion shall not be addressed 
4. Concrete stairs leading from Marchant Street up to the front entrance shall be replaced with code 

compliant concrete stairs in kind.  No integral color or paint will be included. 
 
You are able to contract and complete the denied work yourself.  You will be required to obtain a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for the work once a scope is established, which will need to be reviewed by 
the Historic Preservation Commission and City Council.  Dates for these meetings, and deadlines for 
turning in documents for information packets, are available from the Community Planning and 
Development office. 
 
Please let us know if you have any additional questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jessica M. Killian, PE, LEED GA 
Senior Project Manager 
 
CC: Cynthia L. Linker and Tami Archer – City of Black Hawk  
 
Encl: Application, Appeal Guidelines 

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 2



Appendix 3 

171 Marchant Street 



  

 

 

171 Marchant Street – Sitework Grant Request 
 
The property owners at 171 Marchant Street have requested a Sitework Component Community 
Restoration and Historic Preservation Fund Grant for rock wall work throughout their property, repairs to 
stairs and fences, and remediation of water intrusion at the rear of the house (see attached application 
request).  On July 1, 2014, Consilium Partners met with Nan Works (“Owner”) to review the existing 
conditions related to this request.  Please note, the house was previously renovated utilizing City of Black 
Hawk Historic Restoration and Community Preservation Grant funds in 2005. 
 
Based on Consilium Partners’ review and the attached pictures, Consilium Partners notes the following: 
 
Rock Wall Repairs 
The rock wall on the south side of the property, along Marchant Street, is bowing out slightly.  This is 
indicative of a partial failure and may eventually result in significant damage.  Consilium Partners would 
recommend the walls along Marchant Street, on both sides of the stairs, be further investigated by an 
engineer.  Rock walls located to the east of the house appear to be original walls that have deteriorated 
from age.  Although continued deterioration is likely, Consilium Partners did not observe any areas of 
significant failure, or potential damage to any structures. 
 
Repairs to Stairs and Fences 
The stairs which run from Marchant Street up to the level of the house are deteriorated in certain areas, 
and may cause trip hazards.  These stairs were not included in the previous Grant work.  Replacement 
could likely be done in parts where damage was significant, however, matching the color of the remaining 
stair areas would be difficult.  A wooden fence runs along the south side of the property and appears to 
be in fair condition, although does show some deterioration potentially due to movement of the rock wall 
adjacent to it.  Any repairs would likely be minor and could fall under homeowner maintenance. 
 
Remediation of Water Intrusion 
Due to erosion, the drainage swale at the back of the house was reported to fill up and at times allows 
water into the house.  It appears that homeowner maintenance in this area has not been completed as 
frequently as required, which has allowed one drain to be completely blocked, and the other to be partially 
blocked.  Additionally, as this area was reviewed and constructed via the Grant Program previously, 
Consilium Partners would anticipate that the current issues are a result of homeowner maintenance. 
 
In summary, Consilium Partners would recommend additional investigation to the streetside walls along 
Marchant Street, at minimum.  Additional consideration to repairs at the stairs and the fences could be 
considered if City staff feels this is appropriate. 
 
Thank you, 
Jessica Killian 
Consilium Partners 
July 17, 2014 
  

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 3



  

 

 
Photographs of Existing Conditions 
 

 
 
Marchant Street wall 
 
 

 
 



  

 

Marchant Street wall 
 

 
 
Site walls 
 
 

 
 
Site stairs 



  

 

 
 
 

 
 
Deterioration at stairs 
 
 

 
 



  

 

Wood fence 
 
 
 

 
 
Drainage swale 
 
 

 



  

 

 
Location of potential water intrusion 
 
 
 

 
 
Debris at west drain 
 
 



  

 

 
 
Potential location of blocked drain 



Appendix 4 

171 Marchant Street 



From: Tom Isbester
Sent: Friday, October 03, 2014 10:34 AM
To: Cynthia Linker
Subject: FW: 171 Marchant - Additional Information

From: Matthew J. Reed
Sent: Friday, October 03, 2014 8:39 AM
To: Tom Isbester
Subject: RE: 171 Marchant - Additional Information

Following are our comments regarding the Site Work Scope of Work:

1. The City should have no responsibility to clean out the rear concrete drainage pan.

2. However, I could see the grant program constructing a new set of stairs.

3. Also, I could see this being a rock wall project, though not necessarily because the front
wall is “bowing out slightly” and should be “further evaluated by an engineer”. More
because this would allow the gas line and other utilities to be installed behind the wall.
Rebuilding this wall could also improve aesthetics, if that’s important to the City. The
fence would need to be removed and reset/rebuilt if the wall comes down.

Thomas Isbester
City of Black Hawk Public Works Director
987 Miners Mesa Road
P.O. Box 68
Black Hawk, CO 80422
303-582-1324

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 4



Appendix 5 

171 Marchant Street 



 BLACK HAWK CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY     

 Cultural Resource Re-evaluation Form    

 (page 1 of 2) 
 
 

1. Current Address:  171 Marchant 
 

2. Resource Number:  5GL.7.409                                                                     3.  NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
 
4. Resource Name:                                                                                         

5. Purpose of this current site visit (check as many as apply) 

         Site is within a current project area 

   X    Resurvey 

   X    Update of previous site form(s) 
         Surface collection 
          Testing to determine eligibility 
         Excavation 
         Other 

  

6. Previous Recordings:  

   X     1986 National Park Service Survey    X    Photograph 

   X     1991 National Historic Landmark Nomination      No Photographs                    X    Contributing  

   X      1998 Re-survey    X    Photograph 

   X      2004 Photo survey    X    Photograph   

            Other:            Photograph 

  

7. Exterior alterations since 1986:  1998: Historic Preservation grant, alteration permit, $25,000.  2002: 

“upgrades,” $46,000.  2005: Historic Preservation grant, $260,000.  Alterations include metal roof 
replacing former shingle roof, replacement windows.  Site location and vegetation make it difficult to 
photograph and evaluate.    

 

8. Additional historical background: The house is visible in the 1886-1900 Sanborn maps, although the maps 

appear to have the lots numbered incorrectly.  It is also seen in historic photographs purporting to date 
from 1888.  The numerous additions date at least from 1886.  Deed research may reveal a more accurate 
construction date, as the house has architectural features typical of an earlier construction date.   

 

 

    Ca. 1880s        Construction date           Estimate from 1986 NPS Survey    X     New estimate 

Sources of information: Digital Image Collection, Western History & Genealogy, Denver Public Library; The 

Gilpin Railroad Era (Abbot) 
 Sanborn Maps 

   X   1886   

   X   1890 

   X   1895 

   X   1900

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 5



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                     (page 2 of 2) 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                  

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 

     

9. Changes to Location or Size Information: Block 8, lot 1-3 (w 27’ of 3) 

 

10. Revised National Historic Landmark District- Contributing Building Eligibility Assessment:  

 Contributing   X         Non contributing              Need data    

 

11. National Register - Individual Eligibility Assessment: 

 Eligible            Not eligible              Need data    X   

 

12.  Is there National Register district potential?  Yes   X        No              

 Discuss: This building would contribute to a potential N.R. district. 

 

13. Local Designation - Individual Eligibility Assessment:  

 Eligible   X         Not eligible              Need data   

 

14.  Is there Local district potential?  Yes   X       No              

 Discuss: This building would contribute to a potential local district 

 

15. Photograph Types and Numbers: Digital, <.jpg> format.  171 Marchant-1.JPG, 171 Marchant-2.JPG, 171 

Marchant-3.JPG 
 

16. Report Title: Black Hawk Historic Resource Resurvey:  2009-2010 

 

17. Recorder(s):  Deon Wolfenbarger 18. Date(s): July 15, 2010 

 

19. Recorder Affiliation: Three Gables Preservation 

 

20. Attachments                     21. Official determination  
 (check as many as apply)             (OAHP USE ONLY) 
   X   Photographs         Determined Eligible 
        Site sketch map         Determined Not Eligible 
        U.S.G.S. map photocopy         Need Data 

   X   Other                                 Nominated 
        Other                                 Listed 
             Contributing to N.R. District 
             Not Contributing to N.R. Dist 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
Current Photographs 

Date:  1/19/2010, 1/21/2010 

 
 

 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
Current Photograph 

Date:  04/09/2009 

 
 

2004 Photograph 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
 

1998 Resurvey Photograph 

 
 

 
1986 Survey Photograph 

 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 

 
Gilpin County Assessor’s Photographs 

   
 
   
 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
 

Historic photographs 

 
Ca. 1888  

 

 
Ca. 1910 



Current Address:  171 Marchant                                                 Continuation Sheets 

Resource Number: 5GL.7.409                                                    

NHL Resource Number: B7-5 
 
 

1900 Sanborn Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix 6 

171 Marchant Street 



1

Zeljko Spiric

From: G W Works <g.w.works@att.net>
Sent: Friday, September 19, 2014 9:43 AM
To: Cynthia Linker; Jessica Killian
Subject: Appeal of staffers decision re 171 marchant st, blackhawk colorado

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Although we are pleased and grateful that our request for replacing rock walls and site improvements at 171 marchant 
was partially granted, we respectfully appeal such decision as it 
Denies other requested items that were integral in the scope of the long awaited grant request.  Please inform us as to 
our further commitments to present evidence as to necessity and/ or appropriateness of the requested site work.   
Thanks for working with us on this matter..   George Works 
 
Sent from my iPad 

zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 6



Appendix 7 

171 Marchant Street 



zeljko
Text Box
Appendix 7



11

Applicant's Submittal

Applicant’s additional information on following pages provided to the City of Black Hawk
for consideration by City Council with this Appeal case



1

Zeljko Spiric

From: G W Works <g.w.works@att.net>
Sent: Friday, September 19, 2014 9:43 AM
To: Cynthia Linker; Jessica Killian
Subject: Appeal of staffers decision re 171 marchant st, blackhawk colorado

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Although we are pleased and grateful that our request for replacing rock walls and site improvements at 171 marchant 
was partially granted, we respectfully appeal such decision as it 
Denies other requested items that were integral in the scope of the long awaited grant request.  Please inform us as to 
our further commitments to present evidence as to necessity and/ or appropriateness of the requested site work.   
Thanks for working with us on this matter..   George Works 
 
Sent from my iPad 





COUNCIL BILL 22

ORDINANCE 2014-22

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 2-132 OF THE BLACK

HAWK MUNICIPAL CODE
CONCERNING THE

IMPOSITION OF COURT
COSTS TO COVER THE COST
OF INSURING COMMUNITY

SERVICE



STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF GILPIN

CITY OF BLACK HAWK

COUNCIL BILL NUMBER: CB21

ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2014-21

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-132 OF THE BLACK HAWK
MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE IMPOSITION OF COURT
COSTS TO COVER THE COST OF INSURING COMMUNITY SERVICE

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK,
GILPIN COUNTY:

Section 1. Section 2-132 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code is amended by the
addition thereto of a new subsection (a)(10), to read as follows:

(10) The amount necessary to pay for the actual cost to the City of obtaining insurance
coverage for those persons ordered to perform community service.

Section 2. Safety Clause. The Board of Aldermen hereby finds, determines, and
declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Black
Hawk, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this
Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public
convenience and welfare. The Board of Aldermen further determines that the Ordinance bears a
rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be attained.

Section 3. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance
or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a
court of competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other
persons or circumstances.



10/15/14
Q:\USERS\BH\ORD\2014\FORM-ORD.DOC

2

Section 4. Effective Date. The City Clerk is directed to post the Ordinance as
required by the Charter. This Ordinance shall become effective upon posting by the City Clerk.

READ, PASSED AND ORDERED POSTED this 22nd day of October, 2014.

_______________________________
David D. Spellman, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk



October 17, 2014

CITY OF BLACK HAWK

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

SUBJECT: Ordinance amending Section 2-132 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code
concerning the imposition of court costs by the Black Hawk Municipal Court to cover
the expense of providing worker’s compensation insurance to convicted offenders
participating in court ordered community service.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following motion to the Mayor and
Board of Aldermen:

MOTION OF APPROVAL to approve Council Bill 21, an ordinance amending
Section 2-132 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: The Black Hawk
Municipal Court frequently requires convicted offenders to participate in community
service as part of the offender’s sentencing. Some community service agencies
refuse to allow individuals sentenced by the Black Hawk Municipal Court to
participate in their programs due to a lack of worker’s compensation insurance
coverage. The City of Black Hawk Municipal Court seeks an ordinance allowing the
Municipal Court to include the cost of worker’s compensation insurance into the
community service participant’s court cost. The ordinance will increase the number
of venues available for offenders to complete community service. The City Attorney
drafted the attached ordinance amending Section 2-132 of the Municipal Code to
allow the court cost to be imposed by the court.

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A

WORKSHOP DATE: N/A

ORIGINATED BY: Sally Canady, Municipal Court Clerk

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Sally Canady, Municipal Court Clerk

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: Council Bill 21

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ X ]Yes [ ]No [ ]N/A INITIALS_________

SUBMITTED BY: Stephen Cole, Chief of Police

_ _________
Stephen Cole Jack D. Lewis
Police Chief City Manager



COUNCIL BILL 22

ORDINANCE 2014-22

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING
THE FTA SECTION 5311
GRANT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE COLORADO
DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION, DIVISION
OF TRANSIT AND RAIL AND
THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK



STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF GILPIN

CITY OF BLACK HAWK

COUNCIL BILL NUMBER: CB22

ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2014-22

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FTA SECTION 5311 GRANT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, DIVISION OF TRANSIT AND RAIL AND THE
CITY OF BLACK HAWK

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK,
GILPIN COUNTY:

Section 1. The City of Black Hawk hereby approves the FTA Section 5311 Grant
Agreement between the Colorado Department of Transportation, Division of Transit and Rail
and the City of Black Hawk, as more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference, and authorizes the Mayor to execute the same on behalf of
the City.

Section 2. Safety Clause. The Board of Aldermen hereby finds, determines, and
declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Black
Hawk, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this
Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public
convenience and welfare. The Board of Aldermen further determines that the Ordinance bears a
rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be attained.

Section 3. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance
or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a
court of competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other
persons or circumstances.



10/15/14
Q:\USERS\BH\ORD\2011\WEED IGA APPROVE-1.DOC

2

Section 4. Effective Date. The City Clerk is directed to post the Ordinance as
required by the Charter. This Ordinance shall become effective upon posting by the City Clerk.

READ, PASSED AND ORDERED POSTED this 22nd day of October, 2014.

_______________________________
David D. Spellman, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk

























































































CITY OF BLACK HAWK

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

SUBJECT: Execute a grant from CDOT for partial funding of a utility tractor for the bus barn
facility.

RECOMMENDATION:
If City Council chooses to approve Council Bill 22, the recommended motion is as follows:
“Approve Council Bill 22, An Ordinance Approving the FTA Section 5311 Grant Agreement
between the Colorado Department of Transportation, Division of Transit and Rail and the City of
Black Hawk”

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:
The City applied for the grant back in early 2013. The award was announced in October of 2013
but CDOT was not able to get contracts out until just recently. The grant is for $44,000 with a
minimum 20% local match. The unit staff has selected is a mini-wheel loader. The unit is very
versatile and will have forks for unloading palletized parts and drums of product for the car wash.
In addition there will be a bucket and a 10 foot snow pusher for cleaning the parking lots around the
bus barn. The quote for the unit is $75,625. The difference of $31,625 will be funded from various
Streets and Fleet accounts from the 2014 budget.

FUNDING SOURCE: various streets & fleet line items

WORKSHOP DATE: 22-Oct-14

ORIGINATED BY: Tom Isbester

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Tom Isbester

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE: December 31, 2015

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: ordinance & contract

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ ]Yes [ ]No [ ]N/A INITIALS__________

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY:

Thomas Isbester, Public Works Director Jack D. Lewis, City Manager



RESOLUTION 81-2014 

A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING THE 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

BLACK HAWK AND 

LOCHSMITH, INC. AS 

OWNER OF THE 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

120 MAIN STREET 



STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF GILPIN

CITY OF BLACK HAWK

Resolution No., 81-2014

TITLE: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE LICENSE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK HAWK AND LOCHSMITH, INC. AS
OWNER OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 120 MAIN STREET

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT:

Section 1. The License Agreement between the City of Black Hawk and
LOCHSMITH, INC., attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved, and the Mayor is
authorized to execute the same on behalf of the City.

RESOLVED AND PASSED this 22nd day of October, 2014.

_______________________________
David D. Spellman, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk













CITY OF BLACK HAWK

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING: October 8, 2014

SUBJECT: License Agreement for a Blade Sign at the Wild Card Casino in City Right-
of-Way

This action item is for approval of a License Agreement to allow the recently approved Wild
Card Casino Comprehensive Sign Plan blade sign to extend approximately three feet into the
Main Street right-of-way.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:
On May 28, 2014, Black Hawk City Council approved a Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) and
Certificate of Appropriateness for the Wild Card Casino at 120 Main Street. The approved
resolution contained a condition requiring the applicant complete a survey to verify whether a
license agreement for a projecting sign needed to be processed. A survey of the site shows there
will be an encroachment of a projecting blade sign into the right-of-way for Main Street.

Staff from Baseline Corporation has worked with the owner of the property as well as the City
Attorney and has completed the attached license agreement. CCS Consultants has also reviewed
and approved the legal description for the encroachment areas into the City right-of-way. The
City of Black Hawk Municipal Code allows for license agreements and similar approvals for
encroachments of private improvements in the airspace over a right-of-way. The agreement is
ready for review and approval by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff from Baseline Corporation recommends the City Council consider a MOTION TO

APPROVE the License Agreement as submitted.

RESOLUTION DATE: October 8, 2014
ORIGINATED BY: City Staff and Lochsmith, Inc.
STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: License Agreement with Exhibit A
CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [X] Yes [ ] No [ ] N/A

INITIALS__________

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY:

9/25/2014
Vincent Harris, Baseline Corporation Jack D. Lewis, City Manager

10/17/14

MMartin
Jack Lewis



LICENSE

THIS LICENSE is made and entered into this ___ day of __________, 2014, by
and between the CITY OF BLACK HAWK, Colorado whose address is 211 Church
Street, Black Hawk, CO 80422 (the "City") and LOCHSMITH, INC., owner of the real
property whose address is 120 Main Street, Black Hawk, CO 80422 ("Licensee").

1. PROPERTY LICENSED. The property that is licensed for the use and the term
provided for in this license is depicted in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by this reference ("Property Licensed"). The Property Licensed for
installation of a projecting sign into the public right-of-way of Main Street is subject to
all easements, lands, and rights-of-way of record.

2. RELOCATION. In the event the construction or reconstruction of any
roadways, or the construction, reconstruction or repair of any of the City's property
necessitates the relocation or removal of the structure(s) or fixtures(s) described in
paragraph 5 herein, then Licensee shall, at its sole cost and expense, timely perform or
cause the performance of such relocation or removal of the structures(s) or fixture(s).

3. INSURANCE. Licensee shall obtain for itself, its agents, successors, assigns,
lessees, licensees and agents, necessary and adequate workman's compensation
insurance, personal injury insurance, and property damage insurance, with limits
commensurate with the hazards and risks associated with the use of the Property
Licensed, but in no event less than the liability limits established by the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., as now in effect or as
hereinafter amended. Neither Licensee nor its agents, successors and assigns shall
commence any construction, placement, operation or maintenance of the fixture or
structure on the Property Licensed until it has obtained all insurance required under this
section and shall have filed a certificate of insurance or a certified copy of the insurance
policy with the City. Each insurance policy shall list the City as an additional named
insured and shall contain a clause providing that coverage shall not be cancelled by the
insurance company without thirty (30) days written notice to the City of intention to
cancel.

4. UTILITIES. Licensee covenants and agrees to pay all charges for electric
power and other utilities assessed, levied or incurred on the Property Licensed by reason
of the installation of a projecting sign during the term of this license or any renewal
thereof.

5. INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND ALTERATIONS.
Licensee shall initially install the improvements on the Property Licensed in the manner
submitted and as designed. After initial installation, Licensee covenants and agrees not
to make or permit to be made any alterations in, or additions to, the Property Licensed
without the prior written consent of the City and its associated review agencies and to
keep the improvements thereon including wiring, if appropriate, in good repair and in a
condition that will not interfere with the proper functioning of the Property Licensed, at



the expense of Licensee; ordinary wear and tear and loss by fire, flood, or act of God
excepted. Licensee also agrees to repair any and all damage to any improvement that may
be damaged as a result of the installation of a projecting sign.

6. USE. Licensee covenants and agrees that it shall utilize the Property Licensed
to Licensee for no other purpose and not to use the Property Licensed or permit it to be
used for purposes prohibited by the laws of the applicable United States, State of
Colorado, or any political subdivision thereof.

7. RE-ENTRY. Licensee covenants and agrees to permit the City or its duly
authorized representatives to inspect the Property Licensed and to do such other acts and
things, as it deems necessary for the protection of its interests therein.

8. NOTICE. Any notice required under this License shall be in writing and mailed
by certified mail to the respective parties at the address hereinabove given. The Public
Works Director shall be the representative of the City to accept or respond to any notice
or the like provided hereunder. In the event Licensee should change the address
hereinabove given during the term of this License, Licensee shall notify the City in
writing of such change of address:

The City: Tom Isbester
Director of Public Works
City of Black Hawk
P.O. Box 68
Black Hawk, CO 80422

Licensee: Lochsmith, Inc.
P.O. Box 513
Black Hawk, CO 80422

9. NO COVENANT OF TITLE OR QUIET POSSESSION. The rights granted
herein are without covenant of title or warranty of quiet possession of the Property
Licensed and no water or water rights are granted by this License.

10. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This License shall insure to the benefit of,
and be binding upon, the successors and assigns of the parties.

11. ASSIGNMENT OR SUB-LEASE. Licensee covenants and agrees not to
assign this License or to sublet any part of the Property Licensed without first obtaining
the written consent of the City, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

12. PROPERTY LICENSED TAKEN "AS IS." Licensee understands and agrees
that the Property Licensed is licensed "as is." The City makes no warranty, written or
implied, that the Property Licensed is fit for any purpose or that it meets any federal,
state, county or local law, ordinance or regulation applying to the Property Licensed.



13. LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION. The City shall not be liable for any
loss, injury, death or damage to any person or personal property which may arise from
the Licensee's use or condition, caused by Licensee's use, of the Property Licensed
including, but not limited to, loss, injury, death, or damage resulting from ice, water, rain,
snow, gas, electrical wires, fire, equipment malfunctions, faulty installation, or theft.
Licensee hereby expressly agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, employees and insurers against any
liability, loss, damage, demand, action, cause of action or expense of whatever nature
(including court costs and attorney fees) which may result from any loss, injury, death or
damage allegedly sustained by any person, firm, corporation or other entity which arises
out of or is caused by reason of Licensee's negligent use of the Property Licensed or
Licensee's failure to fulfill the terms and conditions of the License.

14. RESERVATION FOR COUNCIL USE. This License is made under and
conformable to the provisions of all City of Black Hawk regulations insofar as applicable.
Said provisions are incorporated herein and made part hereof by this reference and shall
supersede any apparently conflicting provisions otherwise contained in the License. The
City reserves the right to make full use of the Property Licensed as may be necessary or
convenient in the operation of the public streets and the City retains all rights to operate,
maintain, install, repair, remove or relocate any of its facilities located within the
Property Licensed at any time and in such a manner as it deems necessary.

15. TERMINATION.

a. This License Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time
upon thirty (30) days written notice to Licensee. If the City terminates
this License due to a default by Licensee, Licensee shall be responsible
for removing the projecting sign on the Property Licensed if directed
by the City.

16. VENUE. For the resolution of any dispute arising hereunder, venue shall be in
the courts of Gilpin County, State of Colorado.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in
duplicate.

LICENSEE:

LOCHSMITH, INC.

By: _______________________
Name: _____________________
Title: ______________________

STATE OF ________________________ )
) ss.

COUNTY OF ______________________ )

The forgoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to, and acknowledged before me
this ______ day of _____________, 2014, by _______________________ as the
_______________________ of Lochsmith, Inc.

My commission expires: ____________________________

(SEAL)
____________________________
Notary Public

CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO

By:_____________________________
David D. Spellman, Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk





RESOLUTION 87-2014

A RESOLUTION

IMPOSING AN
APPLICATION FEE FOR

BICYCLE EVENT PERMIT
APPLICATIONS

PURSUANT TO SECTION 8-
126 OF THE BLACK HAWK

MUNICIPAL CODE



STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF GILPIN

CITY OF BLACK HAWK

Resolution No. 87-2014

TITLE: A RESOLUTION IMPOSING AN APPLICATION FEE FOR BICYCLE
EVENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 8-126 OF
THE BLACK HAWK MUNICIPAL CODE

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
CITY OF BLACK HAWK, COLORADO, THAT:

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 8-126 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code, the Board of
Aldermen hereby imposes a bicycle event permit application fee in the amount of One Hundred
Dollars ($100.00).

RESOLVED AND PASSED this 22nd day of October, 2014.

_______________________________
David D. Spellman, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk



CITY OF BLACK HAWK
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

SUBJECT: Section 8-126 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code requires an application fee for
Bicycle Event Permit Applications to be established by resolution.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following motion to the Mayor and Board of
Aldermen:

MOTION TO APPROVE Resolution 87-2014, A Resolution Imposing an Application Fee for
Bicycle Event Permit Applications Pursuant to Section 8-126 of the Black Hawk Municipal Code.

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: In reviewing the Municipal
Code, staff discovered an application fee for Bicycle Event Permits is required to be established
by resolution.

AGENDA DATE: October 22, 2014

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A

WORKSHOP DATE: N/A

ESTIMATED DATE OF PROJECT COMPLETION: N/A

ORIGINATED BY: Melissa Greiner

STAFF PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Melissa Greiner

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: N/A

RECORD: [ ]Yes [ X ]No

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: [ X ]Yes [ ]No [ ]N/A INITIALS__________

SUBMITTED BY: REVIEWED BY:

10/17/14 10/17/14
__________________________ __________________________________
Melissa Greiner, City Clerk Jack D. Lewis, City Manager


	10-22-2014 Agenda Final.pdf
	2014-10-8 Minutes final draft.pdf
	101 Hillside Street Cover Sheet.pdf
	Final Packet 101 Hillside Street Grant Appeal_Rev1.pdf
	171 Marchant Street Cover Sheet.pdf
	171 Marchant Street Grant Appeal - Staff Report.pdf
	CB21 Cover Page.pdf
	CB21 Ordinance.pdf
	Request for Council Action - court.pdf
	CB22 Cover Page.pdf
	CB22 Ordinance.pdf
	CDOT Grant.pdf
	CDOT Staff Report.pdf
	R81 Cover Sheet.pdf
	Resolution Wild Card License Agreement-1.pdf
	Res. 81 License Agreement.pdf
	Council Packet_License Agreement Wild Card Sign - 2014-09-25.pdf
	R87 Cover Sheet.pdf
	R87 Resolution.pdf
	Request for Council Action Form.pdf

